ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
ANCHORAGE, AK
June 12, 2012
10: 07 a. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair

Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senator Lesil MGuire

Senat or John Coghi | |

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l menbers present

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis

Representative Chris Tuck

Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes

Representative David CGuttenberg

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PO NT THOVBON SETTLEMENT:
Anal ysis and Legal |ssues - Donald Bullock Jr.
Department of Natural Resources - Deputy Comm ssioner Joe
Bal ash; outside counsel Jon Katchen and Matt Fi ndl ey
Department of Law - Attorney CGeneral M chael Ceraghty
- HEARD

PO NT THOVSON PLAN OF OPERATI ON:
Exxonhbbi |

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
See Senate Judiciary Standing Comrttee m nutes 4/27/12.
W TNESS REG STER

DONALD BULLOCK JR., Legislative Counsel

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- June 12, 2012



Legi sl ative Legal Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Discussed |l egal issues related to the Point
Thonmson settl enment agreenent.

M CHAEL GERACHTY, Attorney Ceneral

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TION STATEMENT: Carified aspects of the Point Thonson
settl enment agreenent.

JOE BALASH, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information and answered questions
related to the Point Thonson settl enent agreenent.

MATT FI NDLEY, Attorney

Ashburn and Mason P. C.

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions as outside counsel to the
state on the Point Thomson settl enment agreenent.

JON KATCHEN, Attorney

Crowel | & Moring

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions as outside counsel to the
state on the Point Thomson settl enment agreenent.

LEE BRUCE, Senior Project Manager

Poi nt Thonson proj ect

ExxonMobi | Cor porati on

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Delivered a PowerPoint and discussed the
Poi nt Thonmson Pl an of Operation.

CHARLES MCKEE, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the Point Thonmson heari ng.

WARREN CHRI STI AN, Presi dent

Doyon Associ ated LLP

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the Point Thonson
proj ect .

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- June 12, 2012



JERRY MCCUTCHEQN, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the only Al aska gas pipeline
will be from Cook Inlet.

BARBARA HUFF- TUCKNESS, Director

Governnmental and Legislative Affairs

Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for the Point Thonson project
and thanked the conmttee for continuing the hearings.

Rl CK ROCGERS, Executive Director

Resour ce Devel opnent Council (RDC)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of settling the Point
Thomson | ease litigation and stated support for nonetizing North
Sl ope gas.

Bl LL WALKER, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TION STATEMENT: Cdarified that he appealed Comm ssioner
Sullivan's decision to enter into the Point Thonson settl enent
agreenent because the process bypassed the public.

JOHN MACKI NNON, Executive Director

Associ ated General Contractors of Al aska

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the Point Thonson
proj ect .

DAVE CHAPUT, Program Director

Al aska Frontier Constructors (AFQC

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the Point Thonson
proj ect .

GARY DI XON Jr., Vice President

Al aska Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the Point Thonson
proj ect .

KATHLEEN O CONNELL, Vice President of Projects

PRL Logistics, Inc.
Anchor age, AK

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- June 12, 2012



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the Point Thonson
proj ect .

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 07: 05 AM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 10:07 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Paskvan and Chair French.

Poi nt Thonson Settl enent: Anal ysis and Legal |ssues

10: 08: 21 AM
CHAIR FRENCH said his interest in the hearing today is to |ook
at both the settlenment agreenment itself and the policy

inplications going forward for this and future projects. As DNR
pointed out in a summary of the Point Thonmson history, an
agreenent struck in 1983 had the wunintended consequence of
| eaving Point Thonmson undeveloped for decades. The obvious
intention is to keep that from happeni ng agai n.

He said that the legality of the settlenent is not in question
today, but there wll be discussion of the overall breaking
point of that idea. The comrittee wll also address the
legitimate question that many nenbers of the public have asked
about whether a secret deal crafted between the adm nistration

and ExxonMobil is really in the public interest. He wel coned M.
Bul | ock.
10: 09: 20 AM

DONALD BULLOCK JR., Legislative Counsel, Legislative Lega
Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, stated that he primrily
does oil and gas work for the |egislature.

CHAIR FRENCH asked him to review the June 8, 2012 nenprandum
t hat he prepared.

10:10: 16 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSEKI j oi ned the comm tt ee.

MR. BULLOCK cautioned that he was wunfamliar wth and not
prepared to speak about several things. He was not famliar with
the particulars of the agreements nmde regarding the |eases in
Poi nt Thonson or the negotiations between the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR) and the Attorney General. He suggested
the conmttee ask the parties directly about those issues.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- June 12, 2012



MR. BULLOCK said he looked at the authority of the attorney
general to enter into settlenents and agreed with what the
commttee heard during the April 27, 2012 hearing. In that
forum the attorney general has broad discretion to settle cases
on behalf of the state. If the settlenment takes place at the

admnistrative level, the attorney general can advise the
commi ssioner of DNR regarding a particular action to take;
during the |litigation phase, the attorney general has the

authority to enter into settlenents.

10: 11: 51 AM
CHAIR FRENCH asked what the outer boundaries are for that
general rule.

MR. BULLOCK replied it is a separation of powers issue; the
| egislature wites the laws within which the attorney genera
and the conm ssioner can operate. The |legislature passed AS
43. 23. 020, which specifically authorizes the attorney general to
settle cases like this.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the legislature could nodify the statute
to authorize the attorney general to settle cases valued up to
$5 billion, but anything above value that wuld require
| egi sl ative approval.

10: 12: 58 AM

MR. BULLOCK replied that would probably be chall enged under the
separation of powers doctrine. The scenario in which it would be
a problem is if the executive branch negotiated a settlenent
that the legislature didn't approve, and the beneficiary of the
settlenment challenged in <court the legislature's power to
approve the contract.

He said there was sonme confusion when the |egislature passed the
Al aska Gasline Inducenent Act because it gave the comm ssioners
of natural resources and revenue the authority to nake a
recommendation, which the legislature wuld then approve.
Arguably, the executive branch had the authority to approve the
AGQ A contract wthout |egislative confirmation

10: 14: 15 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if his analysis on that point extends to the
Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act.

MR. BULLOCK offered his belief that the SGDA suffers from that
problem in addition to the issue of contracting away the power
to tax.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- June 12, 2012



CHAIR FRENCH asked if he was saying that it was potentially
unconstitutional when the legislature <considered the AGA
contract that the Miurkowski adm nistration and ConocoPhilli ps,
BP and ExxonMobil negoti at ed.

VR. BULLOCK said yes; there probably would have been
constitutional litigation based on the separation of powers, had
the legislature wthheld its approval.

CHAI R FRENCH summarized that absent a constitutional change to
give the legislature the authority to intrude into executive
branch matters, the attorney general and the adm nistration have
the power to settle litigation wth essentially no boundary.

10: 16: 41 AM

MR. BULLOCK said the one exception is that the |egislature has
the power of appropriation; the legislature it can ask what the
noney is for and withhold part of all of the funds. However, the
appropriation issue is probably irrelevant at Point Thonson. The
issue is nore about when the state wll receive noney from
devel opnment of the resource.

CHAIR FRENCH asked what the result would be if t he
adm nistration agreed to a settlenment that was clearly in
viol ation of state | aw.

MR. BULLOCK responded that any taxpayer in the state could
challenge the action in court. He noted that Baxley v. State,
which he nmentioned in the June 8, 2012 nenorandum involved a
citizen-taxpayer challenge to an action that was taken. He noted
that the courts will generally defer to the discretionary action
of a person in state government, subject to abuse of that
discretion or sone fatal flaw. A difference of opinion doesn't
qual ify.

10:19: 13 AM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the scope of the litigation was part of
t he questi on.

VR. BULLOCK said yes. The |litigation began because the
comm ssioner of natural resources took the admnistrative
position that it was tine to break up the wunit. That was
appealed and in the context of the Ilitigation the attorney
general | ooked at where the best interests of the state lay. The
action had gone on for nore than seven years and what the state
would ultimately gain was at issue. The attorney general did not

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- June 12, 2012



act in the dark or independently, the commi ssioner of natura
resources signed the settlenent too.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if it was fair to assune that filing
l[itigation would not give the parties carte blanche to decide
any issue that may be tangentially rel ated.

MR. BULLOCK responded that the attorney general has both the
statutory and common |aw authority to act in the best interests
of the state.

SENATOR PASKVAN questioned whether elimnating adnministrative
procedures or limting the scope of review mght prospectively
exceed the scope of litigation.

MR, BULLOCK said the settlenment agreenment addressed that issue
by including dispute-settling provisions. Any disputes under the

agreenent will be handled in the way that is discussed in the
settl enent agreenent. Issues that are not within the settlenent
will continue to be handled in the normal neans for handling

adm ni strative appeals for the departnent.

10: 23: 44 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the comm ttee.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if provisions in the settlenment agreenent
prospectively limt what the AOGCC can | ook at.

MR. BULLOCK said the settlement affects some things outside the
settlenment such as how to divide the state's royalty gas between
Point Thomson and Prudhoe Bay if it is used to pressurize
Prudhoe Bay. He noted that he addressed that thoroughly in the
June 8, 2012 nenorandum There are also things that the
settlenment doesn't address and doesn't have the authority to
mandat e particular outcones. He offered his belief that AOGCC is
in that category.

10: 25: 47 AM

CHAI R FRENCH expressed concern with the representations fromthe
adm nistration that the agreenent generally self-executes and is
wi t hout appeal. He asked M. Bullock if he had reviewed those
parts of the settlenent.

MR. BULLOCK confirmed that he | ooked at those generally and they
seemto be the result of policy decisions and agreenents between
the parties. The settlenment recognizes certain issues and says
that the actions they require wll happen wthout further

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- June 12, 2012



appeal. The parties gave up options they would otherw se have to
reconsi der what was happening and nake decisions along the way
in order to keep things noving forward. He opined that the
purpose of the settlement was to relate to the nmanagenent of the
unit, through 2019 in sonme cases.

CHAIR FRENCH read the following from paragraph 5.1.4 of the
settl enent agreenent:

Any Party may dispute whether a specified event has
occurred that pursuant to the ternms of this Agreenent
would result in termnation of the Point Thonson Unit
Wt hout Appeal or release of acreage Wt hout Appeal

He asked what it nmeant to himas an attorney that "any party may
di spute whether a specified event has occurred.”

10: 28: 38 AM

MR. BULLOCK said his response would be general, because he had
not | ooked specifically at that paragraph. He relayed that under
any settlenment agreenment certain actions are expected, but
whet her a particular action has taken place will be a factual
i ssue. The inpact of a particular action would be subject to the
terms of the settlenent because that is the consequence of an
action, but there wuld still be a dispute as to whether
somet hi ng shoul d have happened at a particular point and whet her
it did happen.

CHAIR FRENCH asked what would happen wunder the follow ng
exanpl e. The agreenent says ExxonMobil has to drill three wells
within five years or the unit wuld be termnated wthout
appeal. At the end of five years, the state says that ExxonMobi
drilled just 2.5 wells and ExxonMbil says it drilled 3 wells.

MR. BULLOCK said the issue is whether drilling to the targeted
depth constituted a well, and that would have to be clarified.

CHAI R FRENCH asked who woul d resol ve that factual dispute.

MR. BULLOCK said the parties would do it within the settlenent
agreenent if the issue was addressed.

CHAI R FRENCH read the second part of paragraph 5.1.4 as foll ows:
In the event of such dispute, term nation of the Point

Thomson Unit Wt hout Appeal or the release of acreage
Wt hout Appeal shall not be required until there has

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- June 12, 2012



been a final judicial determnation as to the
occurrence of the specified event, or upon an
Abandonnent determ nation via arbitration under
Paragraph 4.2.3, This Paragraph 5.1.4 does not apply
to DNR deci sions referenced in Paragraph 5.1.2(b).

He asked if the factual determ nation of whether 2.5 or 3 wells
were drilled would go to the conmssioner or a judicial
determnation, and if the latter would be in a courthouse.

MR. BULLOCK suggested he ask the attorney general and ExxonMbbi
what they envisioned. It 1is obviously a product of policy
deci sions and agreenent between the parties as to what things
the action of the agreenent itself would settle, the disputes
t hey antici pated, and how t hey woul d be resol ved.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if a final judicial determnation would be
done in a courthouse.

MR. BULLOCK answered yes; it would be a judicial branch action.

10: 31: 50 AM
CHAIR FRENCH said another concern is that the settlenent
agreenent adopts a different definition of "major gas sale" than
is used in the Prudhoe Bay operating agreenent. He asked M.
Bul lock to summarize the analysis he gave in the June 8, 2012
menor andum

MR. BULLOCK stipulated that because he wasn't familiar with unit
agreenents and | eases, he didn't fully understand the
consequences of a finding that a major gas sale has occurred

The settl enent agreenent has |ynch pins concerning whether there
is a mjor gas sale or not, and for the purposes of Point
Thonmson, "major gas sale" is defined as 0.5 billion cubic feet
per day (bcf/d). He said he did not know how that nunber was
reached outside the context of a conpeting natural gas pipeline
under the Alaska Gasline |nducenment Act, which entitles the
licensee to triple damages of qualified expenditures. He
suggested the parties nmay have a better answer.

CHAIR FRENCH said he found it odd and worrisonme that the
definition does not specify the anmount of gas that nust be
noved. It says that a pipeline has to be built that is capable
of noving a mmjor amount of gas, but nowhere does it say that a
maj or anmpunt of gas actually has to be noved. Myving a few
nol ecul es satisfies the definition under the agreenent.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- June 12, 2012



10: 35: 47 AM

MR. BULLOCK said a critical part of settlement is that an event
triggers the state to take its royalty gas. That event is when
gas is produced into the gas pipeline from Point Thonson to
Prudhoe Bay. AS 38.05.182(a) guides the taking of the royalty in
kind, which is consistent with the settlenment agreenent. Wat
the settlenent doesn't say is how much or even that the state is

in the position to sell its gas. However, if gas is produced
from Point Thonson and used to pressurize Prudhoe Bay, the gas
effectively will be stored in the Prudhoe Bay unit until there

is an opportunity for sale.

CHAIR FRENCH comrented that it was a highly interesting
arrangenment to nove gas from the Point Thonson reservoir and
inject it into the Prudhoe Bay reservoir. He asked if the state
had the same one-eighth royalty interest in both reservoirs.

MR. BULLOCK said he didn't know, but he'd heard comments that
the royalty agreements vary in the Point Thonson |eases. He
added that the use of Point Thonson gas to pressurize Prudhoe
Bay would not be considered for taxable purposes, as the
production of gas. The settlenent cites the regulation, but
there is actually statutory authority for that.

10: 39: 39 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL observed that the settlenent says that if a
pipeline is built, the state could take its royalty in kind for
either in-state use or for pressurization.

MR. BULLOCK responded that the in-kind gas belongs to the state
but if there isn't a place to put it, it wll stay in the gas
cap. The settlenent agreenent provides two options for what to
do with Point Thonson gas. One is to cycle the gas, which would
mai ntain the pressure in the Point Thonmson reservoir. The other
option is to take the gas off the wunit, at least as far as
Prudhoe Bay.

SENATOR COGHI LL expressed interest in knowi ng how Point Thonmson
gas that's used to pressurize Prudhoe Bay will be neasured once
it's produced. He said his understanding is that it would be
anot her agreenent.

MR. BULLOCK confirmed that the terns of the agreenment include a

delivery point definition. He suggested asking DNR where the gas
w Il actually be neasured and accounted for.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- June 12, 2012



CHAIR FRENCH reiterated how different the definition of "mjor
gas sale” is in the settlenment agreenment conpared to the
definition in the Prudhoe Bay operating agreenent. The Prudhoe
Bay operating agreenent defines a major gas sale as the novenent
of at least 1.75 bcf/d of gas off the North Sl ope.

He asked what major issues are not addressed in the settlenent

agreenent and will still need to be resol ved.

10: 42: 00 AM

MR. BULLOCK said two things stand out. The first is how the
state will account for and take its royalty for Point Thonmson

gas that is used to pressurize Prudhoe Bay, once the gas is
produced along with other production. The other open question is
specifically how the Point Thomson unit participants wll work
to get gas off the North Slope. This can be a problem because
the interests of the state and the producers aren't always in
alignnent. It can be noney in the bank for the producer to keep
the reserve in the ground as long as the pressure isn't |ost and
AOGCC standards are followed. The state, on the other hand,
needs noney every year.

10: 43: 30 AM

CHAI R FRENCH observed that it will be a recurring question about
the agreenent that DNR put AOGCC forward as the final overseer
in protecting the state's interest against waste with regard to
the decision for full field cycling or blowdown. He asked if the
role of AOGCC is the sane as DNR in nmaking that determ nation

MR. BULLOCK answered that AOGCC has a separate function to | ook
at the opti num devel opnment of the resource in order to maxim ze
production. One of the issues in Point Thonson is that if the
gas conmes off too quickly, it may |eave too many |iquids behind.
That is a concern of AOGCC and sonething it has authority over
not necessarily when the resource is produced.

CHAI R FRENCH t hanked M. Bull ock for the overview.

MR. BULLOCCK reiterated that his focus in the review was to nake
sure that the royalty terns were consistent with the law and
that the tax event was properly addressed.

10: 46: 13 AM
CHAI R FRENCH wel coned Attorney General GCeraghty.

M CHAEL GERAGHTY, Attorney Ceneral, Departnment of Law (DQ),
said he agreed with M. Bullock's opinion, but wanted to clarify

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- June 12, 2012



two issues. The first is that there was no intent to have the
court review and approve the settlenent agreenent, although it
was submtted to the court as part of the settlenent papers to
dismss the case. Gven the timng of the dismissal, it was
unlikely that the court reviewed and approved the settlenent, he
st at ed.

10: 48: 34 AM

The second clarification relates to the authority of the
attorney general to settle cases that may abrogate certain
aspects of state law. He agreed with M. Bullock's opinion
regarding the authority of the attorney general, but did not
believe that this particular agreenment abrogates or abridges
state law or DNR regul ations. He noted that he addressed that to
sone extent in the letter he submtted.

ATTORNEY CGENERAL GERAGHTY noted that M. Bullock raised the
guestion of how gas injected into Prudhoe Bay and eventually
sold in a mjor gas sale wll be allocated between the two
reservoirs. The answer is that there is an agreenent and
allocation in place so it is clear when the gas goes into the
pi peline, what goes to the state, what goes to the producers,
and what, for exanple, is Point Thomson gas and what is Prudhoe
Bay gas.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if that agreenent was separate from the Point
Thonmson settl enment agreenent.

ATTORNEY GENERAL GERAGHTY answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE CHRI' S TUCK j oi ned the neeting via tel econference.

10: 51: 24 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked his view of the boundary of his authority as
attorney general - the point beyond which an issue is too |arge

or involves too nmuch noney for himto sign and announce a deal
wi t hout any public process or input.

ATTORNEY GENERAL CGERAGHTY answered that he didn't know, but he
didn't believe there was a legal, dollar boundary. Cases worth
hundreds of mllions of dollars have been settled in the past,
and the Point Thonmson case doesn't have a specific dollar anount
per se.

CHAI R FRENCH pointed out that Point Thonmson is worth at |east a
couple of billion dollars.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- June 12, 2012



ATTORNEY GENERAL GERAGHTY opined that the break point is not a
dollar figure; it is the good judgnment and discretion of the
attorney general to approve a settlenent. He said sone things
are better negotiated in private, but it was not his position
t hat he woul d never consult wth the |egislature.

10: 53: 20 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked why the admnistration didn't ask for
| egislative input after the agreenent was crafted and during the
several nonths that ExxonMbil took to present the ternms to the
wor ki ng i nterest owners.

ATTORNEY CGENERAL CGERAGHTY said his understanding is that all the
interest owners were involved in the negotiations to sone
extent. He also opined that there was a substantive difference
bet ween  sophisticated conmer ci al entities di scussi ng an
agreenent and approving it anong thenselves, and submtting such
an agreenent to the political branch of governnent.

10: 57: 01 AM

CHAIR FRENCH said DNR pointed out in the June 7, 2012 letter
that its decision in 1983 to renove the automatic term nation
provision fromthe unit agreenment had an uni ntended consequence.
The consequence of that nodification was that the unit conti nued
for decades w thout production.

He questioned what m ght have happened in 1983 if that agreenent
had conme in front of the legislature or been publicly reviewed,
and if it could have saved the state 30 years of trouble. He
said he hopes that the settlenent agreenent is wthout even a
smal |l flaw, but he wonders if such a |arge question shouldn't be
revi ewed by anot her set of eyes.

ATTORNEY GENERAL CERAGHTY responded that it was strictly a DNR
process in 1983 and DNR clearly had the authority to nake that
decision. There would have been no precedent to consult the
| egislature. Gven the circunstances of this particular case,
the settlement was handl ed appropriately. However, he was not
taking the position that this was a blanket conclusion on al
settl enents.

CHAI R FRENCH referenced paragraph 5.1.4 and asked his thoughts
as to when the conmssioner of DNR would have onmnipotent
authority to make things happen under the settlenent agreenent
and when there would be a judicial determ nation.

11: 03: 14 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- June 12, 2012



ATTORNEY CGENERAL CGERAGHTY said his perception is that in certain
circunstances there may be a right to challenge whether a
factual event took place, but the consequences of the event
cannot be chall enged. They are without appeal. He described the
settlenment as a conprom se that was probably the best the state
coul d achi eve under the circunstances. The arbitration provision
was sonmething the state actually asked for to avoid chall enges
of whether a |ease was abandoned or not. The state wanted a
strict, tinely arbitration for that particular circunstance. He
deferred to DNR for further details.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he had any concerns as an attorney that
the agreenent has no volunetric aspect for noving gas off the
North Slope in order for there to be a nmajor gas sale.

ATTORNEY GENERAL GERAGHTY replied he didn't have any concerns as
an attorney. As a practical matter, he couldn't see the
producers nmaking the investnment required to ship even sone gas
off the North Slope for the sole purpose of neeting the
requi renent.

11: 08: 45 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN referenced page 6 of the June 8, 2012 letter
that says the settlenent agreenment provides that the working
interest owners may sanction a nmajor gas sale at any tine prior
to the end of 2019 in order to retain acreage. He asked why it
should take so long to get just a decision and how it fits with
the understanding that Alaska's natural gas resources wll be
devel oped tinely.

ATTORNEY GENERAL CGERAGHTY said his understanding is that the
timeframes were rigorously negotiated, and 2019 was the shortest
timeframe that DNR could get. He said he shares the frustration
but the scope and investnment of these projects are huge.

11:13: 38 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how it happened that the settlenent
agreenent defines a "major gas sale" as just a nolecule over 0.5
bcf/day, because that's not what Al askans have been considering
for the | ast 30 years.

ATTORNEY CGENERAL CERAGHTY said his perspective is that the
producers do not have an interest in building a line that is
only 0.5 bcf/d. It only makes economc sense to build the
| argest line reasonably possible. The interests of the state and
the producers are aligned on that issue. He deferred to DNR for
speci fics.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- June 12, 2012



11:16: 10 AM
CHAI R FRENCH r ecessed t he neeti ng.

11: 28: 28 AM
CHAI R FRENCH r econvened the neeting and wel comed DNR

JOE BALASH, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources
(DNR), introduced hinself, Jon Katchen, and Matt Findl ey.

11: 30: 18 AM

MATT FI NDLEY, Attorney, Ashburn and Mason, introduced hinself
and relayed that his conpany had been outside counsel to the
state on Point Thonmson since the litigation comenced in 2007.

MR. BALASH thanked the committee for the opportunity to put in
witing the points he didn't have tine to cover in the April 27,
2012 neeting, and that he would be happy to provide witten
answers to any further questions that may arise regarding how
the agreenent cane into being and the consequences noving
forward

CHAIR FRENCH informed the listening public that Conm ssioner
Sullivan and the three presenters were the team that crafted
this agreenent.

MR. BALASH explained that the negotiations on the settlenent
agreenent began wth the prior admnistration. The |ega
m | estones that occurred were the decision in 2008 by Judge
A eason, the remand, and the decision by Judge d eason again in
2010. In between was the 2009 interim decision by then
Comm ssioner Tom Irwin authorizing the drilling of wells PTU 15
and PTU 16 for the Initial Production System (IPS).

CHAIR FRENCH asked when the first work on the settlenent
agreenment commenced.

MR. BALASH answered that the plan of developnment that was
submtted in 2008 - POD 23, fornmed the basis of this IPS. It is
the foundation and technical plan for the settlenent.
Comm ssioner Irwin rejected POD 23 for two reasons. One was the
concern about the commtnent of the working interest owners to
follow through on the activities proposed in the plan. The
second concern related to what would happen after the |IPS cane
on production. The 2009 interim decision authorized those first
two wells and set this path to put the IPS on production.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- June 12, 2012



11: 35: 40 AM

Fol l owi ng the 2009 interim decision was Judge d eason's deci sion
in 2010, which was devastating to the state's interests and
ability to manage Point Thonmson through the PCOD process. The
state filed an interlocutory appeal with the Al aska Suprene
Court. The petition was accepted and that probably hel ped
crystalize and nove al ong negoti ations that began in 2009.

CHAIR FRENCH commented that that didn't sound very good because
ExxonMobi| had the upper hand in the negotiations. He asked his
per cepti on.

MR. BALASH said it was a struggle, but it was wind in their
sails when the court granted the petition. That probably hel ped
bring closure on what was a term sheet |evel agreenent.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what term sheet |evel agreenent neans.

MR. BALASH expl ai ned that many of the key terns and features of
the agreenent were agreed upon in late 2010. At that tinme, the
team consisted of forner DNR Deputy Commi ssi oner Marty
Rutherford and then Attorney GCeneral Dan Sullivan from the
Departnment of Law (DCOL). He said that a termsheet |eve
agreenent was reached at that stage.

CHAI R FRENCH observed that the term sheet agreenment occurred at
the | ow point of state's |egal posture.

MR. BALASH offered his perspective that it was the Al aska
Suprene Court's granting of the petition for review that allowed
the team to nove as quickly as it did to that agreenment. The
state's resolve was not shaken; it was going to do whatever it
took to get the field into tinely production. That resolve
hel ped result in an agreenent that is quite strong.

11: 38: 50 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what the consequence would have been to
the state if: 1) the suprene court had upheld the trial court on
the petition for review and 2) the suprene court had overturned
the trial court decision.

MR. BALASH clarified that the interlocutory appeal cane before
the final decision from Judge deason in 2010. If the suprene
court had upheld the original decision, DNR would have then gone
back to Judge deason for finalization of her decision. That
could have led to a Section 21 hearing under the agreenent,
which would have placed the entire burden on the state to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- June 12, 2012



identify and justify what should happen next in the devel opnent
of the field.

Had the decision gone in the state's favor, DNR would have gone
back to Judge d eason to reconsider the particular decisions and
findings that related to Section 21 and who carried what burden.
She woul d have formul ated that and then issued a final decision.
He expressed confidence that one party or the other would then
have appealed to the suprene court on that final judgnent.

SENATOR PASKVAN said his assunption is that Judge d eason
determned that the state sonehow erred in its termnation
process. He asked what DNR had done to avoid a simlar error if
it were to termnate a lease in the future.

MR. BALASH said there were two points. First, the original
di spute and decision in 2008 found that DNR did not provide
sufficient notice to the working interest owners that
termnation was forthcom ng, and that the renmedy was term nation
of the unit. After 2008, there was a hearing where the working
i nterest owners provided what they thought was the right POD and
proper renedy in the event of a rejection.

11:43: 49 AM

In 2010, Judge d eason found that the question of renedy was to
hold a hearing conducted pursuant to Section 21 of the unit
agreenent. That was somewhat different from the discussion that
t ook place in her court in 2008.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if DNR formally nodified its procedures to
make sure that the due process issue doesn't happen again if the
state should decide to termnate a |lease in the future.

11:45: 31 AM

MR. FINDLEY said Judge deason's rulings raised issues regarding
how DNR inplenments its existing regulations and the specific
things that happened. That does not inply that the regul ations
need to be changed.

11:45: 49 AM

JON KATCHEN, Attorney, Crowell & Mring, added that Section 21
of the Point Thomson unit agreenent is unique. Judge d eason
read that the POD process flowed into a Section 21 process,
whi ch shifted the burden and then reversed how DNR manages | and
No other unit agreement has a simlar provision.

CHAI R FRENCH asked when that unit agreenment was crafted.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- June 12, 2012



MR. KATCHEN answered it was witten in 1977 and anended severa
tinmes in the early 1980s.

CHAI R FRENCH asked when the term sheet was devel oped.

MR. BALASH answered that it was an October 2010 agreenment wth
just the operator.

11:47: 22 AM

CHAI R FRENCH summarized that it was a five or six page agreenent
between DNR and ExxonMbil that developed into the 85-page
docunent that the legislature saw first on March 29, 2012.

MR. BALASH recounted sone of what took place after COctober 2010
as DNR and ExxonMbil continued negotiations. Follow ng the
Novenber election, Governor Parnell went through a transition
process and then Attorney GCeneral Sullivan becane conm ssioner
of natural resources. He essentially retained the portfolio on
the negotiations and settl enent.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if this process accounted in part for M.
Sullivan's transfer from the position of attorney general to
conmi ssi oner .

MR. BALASH suggested he ask the Governor. Hi s understandi ng was
that M. Sullivan denonstrated a broad understanding of the
conplex issues in the oil and gas arena to nanage this and ot her
cases.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if any consideration was given to presenting
this settlenment agreement to the legislature for preview before
finalization

MR. BALASH described the process that unfolded followi ng the
Oct ober 2010 termsheet agreenent. He said the negotiations and
exchange of papers perhaps took longer than it should have, but
the "fully papered" agreenent was finalized in the summer of
2011. Comm ssioner Sullivan nentioned to a legislative conmttee
that there was an agreement with the operator. It was at that
time that the other working interest owners were apprised of the
specific terns and the relative positions of both the operator
and the state.

CHAIR FRENCH recalled that the news reports at that tine
i ndi cated sone pushback from the other operators about their

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- June 12, 2012



lack of involvenent in the structuring of the settlenent
agr eenent .

11: 50: 15 AM

MR. BALASH confirmed that there was sone dissatisfaction. He
continued to explain that the ongoing conversations clarified
the need to find a nmeans of nonetizing North Slope gas in order
to realize the value at Point Thonson. In the sumrer of 2011,
ConocoPhillips and BP termnated their jointly sponsored Denal
pipeline project, and it was in the fall of 2011 that the
Governor started to make clear his willingness to pivot fromthe
North  Anerican market to the LNG narket in order to
commercialize the state's North Sl ope resources.

CHAIR FRENCH asked at what point in the process ExxonMbi
announced it was joining TransCanada in its AQ A pipeline

MR. BALASH recalled that it was in the second quarter of 2009.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if there was a connection between the Point
Thonmson settlenent agreenent and ExxonMbil joining forces with
TransCanada to build a | arge-scal e pipeline.

MR. BALASH opi ned that there was nothing direct or specific, but
it was fair to observe that ExxonMbil was |ooking for ways to
work with the state to neet the state's goals and objectives
represented through the AG A |icense.

MR. BALASH relayed that the Governor nmet with the CEGCs of BP,
ConocoPhi |l l'i ps and ExxonMobil early in 2012 to work to finalize
the agreenent and cone to an understanding of how all parties
would fit together, particularly in |light of the state's
relationship wth TransCanada through the AGA |license
Commercializing North Slope gas via an LNG project was going to
occur within the AG A franmeworKk.

11:54: 06 AM

CHAI R FRENCH asked why DNR chose such a different definition of
"maj or gas sale" in the settlenent agreenment than the definition
under the Prudhoe Bay operating agreenment. He al so asked why the
definition did not include specific volunme requirenents.

MR. BALASH recapped the answer Attorney General Geraghty gave to
the question and highlighted that the 1.75 bcf/d threshold in
the Prudhoe Bay operating agreenent was an agreenent between and
anong the working interest owners, not the unit agreenent to
which the state is a party. To the extent that DNR | ooked to any

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- June 12, 2012



particular frame of reference, 500 mctf/d was identified in 2007
in the AGA statute, and is double the anobunt that Al askans
need. The intention in setting the 0.5 bcf/d threshold in this
agreenent is to ensure there is room to neet Al askans' needs,
not to identify the mninmum needed to retain the acreage.

11:57:43 AM

CHAIR FRENCH said it was extrenely troubling that the settlenent
agreenent uses "mmjor gas sale" as a functioning mlepost
t hroughout the docunent, but the definition in the agreenent
does not require the novenent of nore than a single nolecul e of
gas off the North Slope. He acknow edged that it was unlikely
that someone would build a pipeline that could carry nore than
0.5 bcf and not nove gas, but it was possible. ExxonMbil is
arguably the nobst sophisticated conmpany in the world, and it
doesn't nake a nove w thout thinking ahead ten steps. The state
doesn't have that capability. He asked to be convinced that his
concerns were unfounded that when ExxonMbil agreed to the
definition in the agreenent, that it didn't put one over on the
st at e.

MR. BALASH asked him to consider the MPV reports in the AGA
finding that identified that size matters. It nmatters to the
overall efficiency and econoni c performance of any investnent by
anybody. The Brookings Institution analysis recently confirnmed
that particular finding with regard to exports of Al aska North
Sl ope gas to Pacific nmarkets.

CHAIR FRENCH said he was in conplete agreenment that to make
noney noving gas, the bigger the pipeline the better. He asked
why the settlenent agreenent didn't define a nmajor gas sale as 2
bcf/d or |arger.

MR. BALASH said the work done in 2008 and the findings docunent
denonstrated that there is no way to predict with any certainty
what the "right" nunber is. The placenent of LNG into the market
will occur over a nunber of years, so the issue is how big to
make the pipeline before the deliveries start. He said that
while the repeated use of the definition "major gas sale" is
critical, the wuse of the term "project startup”" 1is also
i mportant. That is when hydrocarbons enter the pipeline.

He said that the results of the concept selection agreenent
between the parties and TransCanada are expected by the end of
the year; at that time everyone wll get a sense of the
magni tude and scale of the project. He enphasized that it isn't

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- June 12, 2012



the end of the discussion with these conpanies in realizing the
full potential of the North Sl ope.

12: 03: 09 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked if a first binding open season is expected
under this concept.

MR. BALASH said that LNG projects in North America typically do
not develop through the use of a conventional open season.
However, the AG A licensee has an obligation to solicit the
mar ket every two years. That wll happen by the end of this
year.

SENATOR PASKVAN noted that he said that this gas pipeline
project would occur within the A A framework. Hi s understandi ng
was that there were statutory provisions under AGA for a first
bi ndi ng open season. He asked if the intention was that those
statutory provisions would be retriggered and result in a
coupl ed tax structure for the first 10 years of production.

12: 05: 06 PM

MR. BALASH said that with regard to this license, there is only
one first binding open season and it occurred in 2010. The
referenced upstream tax inducenents have expired, and it would
require legislative action for that particular inducenment to be
avai | abl e agai n.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if his view was that the opportunity for a
tax freeze that was of fered under AG A has passed

MR. BALASH sai d yes.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked for confirmation that the admnistration
woul d not protest the renoval of the royalty inducenents under
the AG A statutes, so there would be no question that they would
not apply to any pipeline operated through an AQ A franmeworKk.

MR. BALASH replied he was not prepared to endorse that today,
but would review that with counsel to nake sure that anmending a
portion of the AG A statute did not affect the contractual
arrangenent with TransCanada. He said he would provide a witten
response.

SENATOR W ELECHOMBKI asked if the admnistration briefed or

di scussed the terns of the settlenent with any |egislators prior
to settling the case.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- June 12, 2012



MR. BALASH answered he did not believe so.

12:07: 43 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a major gas sale, as defined in
paragraph 2.16 of the settlenent agreenent, could be done
out side of the AG A process.

MR. BALASH sai d yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a mmjor gas sale could be done
under a small pipeline such as the one proposed in HB 9.

MR. BALASH replied that the question will go to the size and
t hroughput of the pipe. The legislature wll authorize the
construction of the project it wants, know ng the boundaries and
consequences.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if under paragraph 2.16 a "l arge-
scale pipeline" does not nean a snmall pipeline such as the
bullet |ine proposed in HB 9.

MR. BALASH said the intention of the agreenent in that
definition is to reserve the ability for the state to do
whatever it needs to neet the needs of Al askans. He opined that
had HB 9 becone |aw, sone provisions within that statute would
have prevented AGC from eclipsing that 0.5 bcf/d threshold. It
is a matter of speculation as to which words woul d have changed
before it becane | aw.

12: 09: 51 PM

CHAI R FRENCH cautioned that if the legislature authorizes an in-
state pipeline, it should nake sure it does not have a design
t hroughput greater than 0.5 bcf/d, because the state could
i nadvertently build the pipeline that ExxonMbil was supposed to
build for the state.

MR. BALASH said even if the state were to build a pipeline with
a design throughput of 750 mmcf/d, this agreenent says that
ExxonMbbi| and the other working interest owners would then fall
under the regular POD process.

12:11: 28 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI recalled that the AGJA statute prohibits
state contributions towards a pipeline larger than 500 mmtf/d
He asked if that was correct.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- June 12, 2012



MR. BALASH replied that the project assurance provision allows
TransCanada to receive a buyout if the state takes that kind of

action on a conpeting project. If the state offers a specific
tax or royalty deal or grants cash to a project, other than
TransCanada, that exceeds 500 mctf/d, it has violated that

project assurance and is liable for the danages identified in
the statute.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI observed that there was no way the state
could contribute to a gas pipeline larger than 500 mctf/d and
nmeet this requirenent.

MR. BALASH said the state could do that, but additional cost
woul d attach.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the additional cost the state woul d pay
is according to the breach provisions of the AG A contract.

MR. BALASH answered he believed that was correct.
12:13: 43 PM

CHAI R FRENCH turned the discussion to full field cycling versus
bl owdown.

MR. BALASH said the letter he submtted to the commttee
di scussed the evaluation that DNR and DOL have undertaken since
t he 2008 PetroTel study was rel eased.

SENATOR PASKVAN returned the discussion to the previous topic.
He asked if a state-supported in-state |line with a design
t hroughput of less than 0.5 bcf/d would violate sonme statutory
provision or the Point Thonson settlenent if it included an
export conponent. He asked, "Can, for exanple, 0.3 bcf be
exported?"

MR. BALASH said the nunber that matters is how much gas goes
t hrough the pipeline |eaving the North Slope, and how nuch North
Slope gas is going through that pipe. Hypothetically, a 400
mmcf/d pipeline travels through the state. Gas is found either
in the Yukon Flats or the Nenana Basin and another 200 mmtf/d is
put into the pipeline at those points. The pipeline would be
carrying nore than 500 mmtf/d of gas, but not nore than 500
mrcf/d of North Sl ope gas.

Anot her variation is 400 mmcf/d of North Slope gas going through

the system and 230 mctf/d is used nomnally to fill the N kisk
plant. That |eaves 170 mmtf/d of North Slope gas that could be

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -23- June 12, 2012



used in state. That is still well within the threshold regarding
the |license and the agreenent.

SENATOR PASKVAN summari zed that an in-state line could be built
using state dollars and 0.5 bcf/d could be exported.

MR. BALASH said yes, as long as the anmobunt of North Slope gas in
t he pipeline stays below 0.5 bcf/d.

12:17:11 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Balash to discuss full field cycling
versus bl owdown.

MR. BALASH said any tal k about |iquids and the potential |oss of
liquids should specify if the talk is about Brookian horizon
liquids, natural gas liquids in the gas |ayer and reservoir at
Poi nt Thomson, or the oil rim that sits adjacent to the high-
pressure gas reservoir and sands.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested he take any di scussion about the Brookian
off the table, because it's not at risk. Regardless of what
happens with the Point Thonson reservoir, Brookian oil wll not
be | ost.

MR. BALASH agreed that the Brookian oil could be devel oped by
t hese working interest owners or sonebody el se, soneday.

CHAIR FRENCH clarified that this discussion was about Point
Thonmson |iquids. They are unique and depending on how the field
is developed, tens of mllions of barrels of liquids may or may
not conme out of that reservoir. Not everyone knows what full
field cycling and blowown neans, but it neans enornous
differences in liquid recovery. He asked him to talk about the
di fferences.

12:19: 54 PM

MR. BALASH said the oil rimin particular will be technically
challenging to recover. He noted that witten correspondence
submtted to the commttee says that the potential for that thin
oil rimis nmuch smaller than was estimated in the 2008 PetroTel
st udy.

CHAIR FRENCH identified that as on page 25-26 of the June 7,
2012 DNR letter. Footnote 99 says there nmay be less oil than
thought in the past, but it's still in the 300 mllion barrel
region of oil avail able.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- June 12, 2012



MR. BALASH said the technical staff advises that that oil rim
shoul d be viewed as a potential upside as devel opnent plans nove
forward

MR. BALASH said that natural gas liquid condensate is the term
generally used when talking about the liquids entrained in the
gas. They're entrained at high pressure so they are in a gaseous
state. Wen the condensate is brought to the surface and
depressurized, the liquid falls out. It can then be recovered
and noved through a conventional |iquid pipe.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if that liquid pipe will connect with the
current Badam pi peli ne.

MR. BALASH sai d yes.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the volune initially is expected to be
bet ween 10, 000 and 20, 000 barrels a day

MR. BALASH said the commtnent in the agreenent to put the IPS
on production will result in 200 mmtf/d of gas being cycled;
liquid will be recovered and the dry gas reinjected into the
reservoir. The expected result in the initial production system
is 10,000 barrels per day of liquid recovered at the surface and
noved through the pipeline. In the agreenment, that has to be on
production by year-end 2015. TAPS throughput will be inmpacted in
2016.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how high the I PS could go.

12: 23: 37 PM

VR. BALASH explained that the IPS wll be designed to
accommobdate 200 mmtf/d, and depending on condensate yield rate,
the 10,000 barrels could be higher or lower. In 2016 the working
interest owners will begin to evaluate whether to expand cycling
at the field or pursue one of the other two devel opnent paths.

12: 24: 30 PM

CHAI R FRENCH noted that the June 8, 2012 DNR l|letter takes issue
with the fact that Dr. Myers based his analysis on the estimtes
in the 2008 PetroTel study, because it was an initial study. He
read the follow ng from page 26

After conpleting this extensive review, the Division
of Ol and Gas concluded that the potential anount of
liquid condensate and oil that could be lost if Point
Thomson were "blowndown" early for a Major Gas Sale

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -25- June 12, 2012



woul d be significantly less [than] the estimtes found
in the 2008 PetroTel study that Dr. Mers and M.
Wal ker rely wupon. DNR cannot disclose the revised
estimate because this information is protected under
Al aska | aw.

He said it raises another goosebunp to see that secret data is
bei ng used to support the deal that was made in secret. He asked
why he shoul d have confi dence.

MR. BALASH said everyone recognizes the value of proprietary
information, but he would be wlling to explore the outer
boundaries of what could be shared in confidence, if the
commttee wanted to do that. The negotiating teamrelied on the
technical staff within the Division of Ol and Gas and the
contractors they worked with to understand the information in
order to neke the policy choices that were mde in the
negoti ation and resolution of this dispute.

CHAIR FRENCH sunmmarized that the physics of the reservoir and
the conplexities of the analysis aren't sonething that can be
ki cked around at this hearing.

MR. BALASH said that is correct. He suggested thinking about the
chal I enges both above and bel ow ground and the consequences for
each with regard to the ultimate viability of cycling on a
| arger scale. The way that the reservoir perforns bel ow ground
and the way the equipnent perforns at the surface are both
i mportant. The 2008 PetroTel study just wanted to understand how
the reservoir mght perform and didn't consider the above ground
constraints.

12:28: 38 PM

One of the scenarios brought 8 bcf/d to the surface and
reinjected it at Point Thonmson, but neither the cost of cycling
t hat anount of gas nor the location of the pads and facilities
was taken into consideration. The reservoir itself is below
water in the shallow Beaufort Sea so it is a challenge. Another
above ground constraint is the highly engineered machinery that
is necessary to handle gas at extrenmely high pressure.

MR. BALASH suggested the nmenbers think about it in terns of the
way the USGS estimates resources. There is a resource estimate
a technically recoverable estimate, and an economcally
recoverable estimate. The 2008 PetroTel study is between the
first and second estinmates. How best to optimze recovery of
hydrocarbons in the field, noves closer to the economcally

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 26- June 12, 2012



recoverable estimate. That is where the state relies on the
expertise and financial interests of the working interest owners
to help identify the broad |link for devel opnent of that unit.

DNR s perspective takes into account a broad range of things,
whereas the AOGCC |ooks purely at the question of waste. The
eval uation of whether to cycle Point Thonson at nore than 200
mcf/d and beyond 10,000 barrels of condensate recovery per day
will begin in 2016.

12: 31: 56 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked what duty the admnistration has to
disclose to the legislature in the future, if the current

confidential information materially changes.

MR. BALASH reiterated his willingness to explore the bounds of
the confidentiality agreenments and obligations.

SENATOR PASKVAN said he appreciated that, but he wanted to know
what duty there is to disclose in the event that there is a
mat eri al change in that information

MR. BALASH responded that wunder the agreenent, the working
i nterest owners have an obligation to share with the Division of
Ol and Gas what they have |earned and are thinking with regard
to the defined objectives and pathways in the agreenment. The

results in 2016 will lead to further evaluation as to whether
the state agrees with the direction and if it is consistent with
the agreenent and state law. There will be opportunity for that
to be understood on the executive branch level and then with the
| egi sl ative branch and broader public. However, it is likely
that there will still be limts to what information becones
publi c.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what duty there is to disclose that there
has been a material change.

MR. BALASH deferred the question to counsel.

MR. KATCHEN asked if he was asking about the duty of the working
interest owners to disclose.

SENATOR PASKVAN said he understands that in the agreenent there
is sone obligation of the working interest owners to disclose
information to the executive branch. He asked if there is a
legal duty for the executive branch to disclose to the policy

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -27- June 12, 2012



maki ng legislative branch when there is a material change in
substantive and factual information.

MR. FINDLEY said he was not aware of any statutory or regulatory
obligation or duty, but that didn't nmean there shouldn't be
conmuni cati on

CHAIR FRENCH quoted Thomas Jefferson saying, "The price of
freedomis eternal vigilance." and prom sed that the |egislature
will watch carefully to see if it would be better to reinject
the gas. He offered his perspective that the state cones out
ahead if the gas is cycled for a long tine. The |egislature may
have to hire its own experts to be convinced about what the best
way forward is. He asked how the settlenent agreenent handles
the decision to do full field cycling or blowdown.

MR. BALASH explained that post IPS there is provision in the
agreenent for a POD to be submtted.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he believes it will be public.

12: 38: 49 PM

MR. BALASH replied he would have to look at the statute and
regul ations to see what becones public and when, but notice and
review processes for both plans of operation (POO and plans of
devel opment (POD) will take place over the life of this
agreenent. DNR has agreed to approve the PCD if it is consistent
with the agreenent, but in a blowdown scenario, the definition
in the agreenent describes the project as one that has gotten
AOGCC approval . He declined to specify the order of those steps.

12:40: 21 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said the next |ine of questioning relates to
enhanced oil recovery (EOR), specifically the difficulty of

tracking Point Thonson gas when it is used to pressurize the
Prudhoe Bay reservoir. He asked if the state royalty interests
were the sane in Prudhoe Bay and Poi nt Thomson.

MR. BALASH said no. The Point Thonson unit has a variety of
| eases; sonme are one-seventh, sone are one-sixth, and sonme are
net profit share |eases.

CHAIR FRENCH said it was his understanding that the accounting
details have not been worked out.

MR. BALASH clarified that sonme features wll not change.
Specifically, there has been no change to the Point Thonson

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 28- June 12, 2012



royalty percentages in the leases and the resulting volunes in
t he EOR case.

CHAI R FRENCH asked who will keep track of the volumes once the
Poi nt Thonmson gas joins an undifferentiated mass of Prudhoe Bay
gas and sits there for sone period of tine.

MR. BALASH directed attention to the provisions on page 47,
par agraph 4.16.2.4 of the agreenent. Wen a volune of gas |eaves
Prudhoe Bay, 75 percent is Prudhoe Bay volunme and 25 percent is
Poi nt Thonmson volunme. Wthin that 25 percent volune the working
interest owners and the state will account the relative royalty
share that has gone in. The agreenment requires gas bal ancing
agreenents be struck to ensure that all parties, including the
state, know whose gas is where and when

12: 44: 49 PM

CHAI R FRENCH revi ewed subsection ii on page 47 and asked if the
affected parties are Point Thonmson and PBU working interest
owners and the state.

MR. BALASH answer ed yes.
CHAI R FRENCH asked what "gas bal anci ng agreenent” neans.

MR. BALASH replied it is a standard feature of accounting for
the gas in the field and who owns that particular gas. If the
state were to sell its Point Thonson RIK gas in Prudhoe Bay to
some third party, there would have to be sone accounting
mechani sm for when that gas is put in Prudhoe Bay, when it is
taken out, and under what circunstances it is taken out.

CHAIR FRENCH said it was a fair answer, but he was still uneasy.

MR. FINDLEY added that injecting nonnative gas into another
reservoir and accounting for the nolecules is not novel. The
accounting is not a sinple procedure, but it's not uncommon. He
said the next question is what happens if the state wants to
W t hdraw t hat gas.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he was tal king about an option whereby the
state says it wants its royalty gas from the Prudhoe Bay
reservoir.

MR. FINDLEY answered yes. The state can withdraw its royalty

gas, but it has to live with the physical constraints of the
reservoir and within the constraints that Prudhoe Bay is still

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -29- June 12, 2012



an oil-producing field. The settl enent contenplates an
agreenent, including the possibility of over balancing the 75
percent 25 percent split for a short period.

He highlighted that this agreenent also nmakes it clear that the
various Point Thonmson royalty rates attach when the gas
nol ecul es conme out of Prudhoe Bay.

12: 50: 04 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the provisions on page 47 apply to
Alternative C, a pipeline for in-state use that is snmaller than
0.5 bcf/d.

MR. BALASH confirmed that the RIK gas allocation principles
apply to Alternative C. Under the scenario that 1.2 bcf/d of gas
is nmoved to Prudhoe Bay, roughly 200 mmctf is going to be saved
as RIK gas. If a major gas sale project has not been sanctioned,
t hese rul es apply goi ng forward.

SENATOR PASKVAN said the public needs to understand that royalty
in kind gas applies solely to Alternative C, and that the only
way there wll be an in-state line is if the state assunes sone
of the cost.

MR. BALASH said how the state mght use that in-state gas isn't
defined, but DNR views it as added value to the state. Under an
Alternative A scenario where a mmjor gas sale project has been
sanctioned and is noving forward, the state will have a royalty
share of the gas that noves through that project, and it could
be wused for in-state purposes. He reiterated that these
particular RIK provisions only apply to Point Thonson gas, not
Prudhoe Bay gas.

SENATOR PASKVAN reviewed the three alternatives. Under
Alternative A the producers essentially sanction a mmjor gas
sal e; under Alternative B the producers cycle at Point Thonson;
under Alternative C Point Thonmson gas is injected into Prudhoe
Bay and that is the only option that triggers royalty in kind.

MR. BALASH said that in an Alternative A scenario Point Thonson
gas very likely will be noving into the system and provide
opportunity to take that gas in kind or in val ue.

12:55: 36 PM

MR. KATCHEN clarified that the three options are not nutually
exclusive. A nmpjor gas sale would not elimnate the other
opti ons.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 30- June 12, 2012



SENATOR PASKVAN hi ghlighted that under Alternatives B and C, a
| arge di aneter gas pipeline may be many years into the future.

MR. BALASH agreed. In an Alternative C scenario, the gas would
be noved from Point Thonson to Prudhoe Bay and there would be an
opportunity to market that gas to Al askans by sone neans. A
conmtnent in the agreenent is that if by 2019 the working
interest owners haven't commtted to cycling and a nmjor gas
sal e, the rough volunetric equival ent of Prudhoe Bay gas w |l be
commercially available to Al askans.

12:59:. 57 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked what has to happen to get to sanction of a
maj or gas sal e.

MR. BALASH said the process to get to a sanction point 1is
neasured in years. Today, because permts are not in hand the
boards of directors are not practically able to say yes, there
will be a pipeline. The 2016 date is realistic and sonewhat
aggr essi ve.

1:02:29 PM

MR. FINDLEY added that the definition of "sanction" in paragraph
2.28 requires docunentary evidence of corporate approvals, firm
transportation service agreenents, and necessary federal
regul atory certificates that have been i ssued and accept ed.

CHAIR FRENCH said he had decided to fornulate his questions
about the aspects of the agreenent that are within the total
di scretion of the conm ssioner versus judicial determnation and
submt them to both legislative legal counsel and DNR for a
witten response. He asked for summary conments.

MR. BALASH said DNR feels this is a good agreenment for the

state. It achieves the objective of getting the field into
production and it puts the working interest owners back on the
clock. Either the resource will be produced or the state wll

get the | and back.

1: 07: 54 PM
Recess for | unch

2:14: 52 PM

CHAI R FRENCH reconvened the neeting and welcomed M. Bruce who
woul d deliver the ExxonMobil presentation.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -31- June 12, 2012



LEE BRUCE, Senior Project Mnager at Point Thonson, Exxonhbbi l
Corporation, stated that ExxonMbil and the Point Thonson unit
owners are conmtted to putting in the Initial Production System
(IPS). He delivered a PowerPoint and discussed the project
acconplishnents to date; a sunmary of the project and schedul e;
the project as it stands today; and the plans going forward to
nmeet the production startup date in the winter season 2015/2016
and extending no later than May 1. Responding to a question, he
confirmed the intention at startup is for ExxonMbil to begin
cycling 200 mscf/d of gas. He further explained that the
project is |located on the eastern flank of the North Sl ope, west
of ANWVR and 25 mles east of Badam . The location is renote, the
environment is hostile, and there is |imted access to any
established infrastructure. Supplies are delivered by ice road
and barge and personnel travel by helicopter.

2:20:01 PM

He highlighted that Point Thonson represents about 25 percent of
the discovered North Slope natural gas resources and that
ExxonMobi | IS comm tted to t he | ong-term responsi bl e
devel opnent of these resources. He reviewed the progress on
wells PTU-3, PTU-15, and PTU-16 on the Central Drilling Pad
starting in July 2008 and that drilling in the hydrocarbon zone
is limted to MNovenber 1 to April 15 due to permtting
requi renents from the North Sl ope Borough and the Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation (DEC) to facilitate clean up in the
event of a spill. These rules continue in the yet to be approved
North Sl ope master plan.

MR. BRUCE reviewed the field |ayout and infrastructure, which is
all that will be needed outside of expanding for the next phase.
About 12 mles of road will be permtted to connect the outlying
east and west pads to the 56-acre central pad. This is specific
to ExxonMobil's operations at Pt. Thonson; no road will connect
to Badam . Site developnents include a gravel mne, an airstrip
t hat can handle a Hercul es-sized aircraft, and water reservoir.

2:33:49 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked when the devel opnents depicted in slide 5
woul d actually be on the ground at Point Thonson.

MR. BRUCE answered that the gravel and infrastructure wll be
installed by the wnter season 2014/2015, but not the
facilities. Gathering lines will bring gas from the east and

west pads to the central pad so it can be treated. The export
pipeline, which is in the sane right-of-way as the west
gathering line, will go on to Badam . Responding to a question

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -32- June 12, 2012



he <confirmed that the export pipeline wll have typica

pressures, whereas the gathering lines wll be very high
pressure. Due to the corrosive flow stream at Point Thonson,
carbon steel lined pipe fromGermany will be used.

2:36:11 PM

MR. BRUCE reviewed the plans for the initial production facility
on the central pad that wll be in place wnter season

2015/ 2016. The scope 1is to produce 10,000 Dbarrels/d of
condensate into TAPS, cycling 200 mmtf/d of natural gas at
10,000 psi. He highlighted that this wll be the highest
pressure cycling project in the world.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked for a definition of "cycling" and other
t er m nol ogy.

MR. BRUCE expl ained that cycling is the process of producing oil
and gas from the ground. The liquids are separated from the gas
and the residual gas is then conpressed to reservoir pressure
and reinjected. The produced condensate or liquids are treated
to neet pipeline-quality specifications and punped into the
pi peline to join Badam and then on to TAPS.

He explained that the Point Thonmson reservoir underlies the
Beaufort Sea. Extended-reach drilling techniques will be used to
enter the reservoir. The reach is 9,000-13,000 feet. He noted
that prior to PTU-15 and PTU- 16, 19 wells were drilled in the
Poi nt Thonmson area in efforts to gain a better understandi ng of
t he geol ogy and resource.

2:42: 20 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked the maxi mum gas capacity and the capacity
for processing liquids.

MR. BRUCE answered the design gas capacity is 200 mmtf/d and the
design liquids capacity is 10,000 barrels/d. The treatnent
facility design is for these capacities.

CHAIR FRENCH comented that this appears to be an enornous
investment to produce a nopdest anmpunt of oil. He questioned how
much capacity can be added for oil production in the future.

MR. BRUCE responded that capacity can't be added to this
facility. He added that part of this project is to determ ne the
next step by better understanding how the resource reacts in a
cycling node, the connectivity of the wells, and what it takes
to work in this renote environnent.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 33- June 12, 2012



CHAI R FRENCH asked if production and injection will take place
in the sane or different |ocations.

2:45: 57 PM

MR. BRUCE answered that they take place in different |ocations
in order to sweep the reservoir, and a producer well is paired
with an injector well. For exanple, if PTU 15 is an injector

then PTU-16 can be a producer. The settlenent agreenent requires
a third well by the winter season of 2016/2017. That will be the
west pad wel | .

He reviewed the tineline and recapped the status of the project.
The detailed engineering for the IPS facilities is about 40
percent conplete and the engi neering for the pipeline and gravel
infrastructure is essentially finished. The expectation is that

the final EIS will be published in July and the Corps will issue
the record of decision on Septenber 21. Cvil and pipeline
construction can begin thereafter phased over tw seasons.
Modul e installation wll take place in the sumer of 2015 and
additional drilling wll take place in the wnter season

2014/ 2015. The latter is for a saltwater disposal well,
conpl etion of PTU- 15 and PTU- 16, and the west pad well.

MR. BRUCE outlined the construction goals for the upcom ng
Wi nter season, January through md to late April

CHAI R FRENCH asked how many jobs will be created by the upcom ng
construction season.

MR. BRUCE estimated it would be about 600 jobs. He continued to
descri be the project sequencing until startup in April 2016, as
described in the plan of operations.

3:07:31 PM

CHAIR FRENCH again nentioned that the facility as described
doesn't have the space to accommobdate additional capacity in the
future.

MR. BRUCE responded that the existing facilities will be used in
conjunction with the yet to be identified next phase. He then
displayed a contractor tree wth ExxonMbil at the bottom
fol | oned by Wor | eyPar sons FLUOR and many in pl ace
subcontractors. Aside from Haskell Corporation, all are Al aska
based.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 34- June 12, 2012



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how many people will be enployed in
the next year and what percent will be Al aska hire through the
contractors and subcontractors.

MR. BRUCE answered that he could not give a percentage, but
there is a content requirement for Alaskans and North Sl ope
Borough residents. About 80 people are working on the project
team half are enployees and the rest are experts and
contractors. Myre people are working on the project itself, but
the day-to-day hiring has not been done. He reiterated that the
wor kforce is expected to peak at about 600.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what steps ExxonMobil is taking to
ensure that the subcontractors are hiring Al askans.

MR. BRUCE said the contracts have requirenents to maximze
Al aska hire and ExxonMobil is working with contractors to ensure
those requirenents are met once hiring starts in several nonths
or the fourth quarter. However, this is dependent on getting the
permts.

MR BRUCE reviewed sone of the conmmunity engagenent and
consultation that has taken place and noted that Appendix | in
the plan of operations has 4-5 pages of the interactions wth
residents of the North Slope Borough. He highlighted the direct
benefits to the state from the Point Thonmson project and
concluded that the IPS lays the foundation for future gas
nmonetization on the North Slope. ExxonMbil's wvision is to
di stinguish the project wth superior performance, be a good
nei ghbor and partner, and build trust with the State of Al aska.

3:18: 34 PM
CHAI R FRENCH t hanked M. Bruce and recessed the neeting.

3:25:50 PM
CHAI R FRENCH reconvened the neeting and opened public testinony.

3:25:59 PM

CHARLES MCKEE, representing hinself, reviewed the materials he
was entering into the record including his ownership letter and
letter of sovereignty, a statenment from the Congressional Record
in 1934 by Lewis T. MFadden, and pages from the fourth edition
of Black's Law Dictionary. He referenced earlier testinony,
nmentioned the palmng off doctrine, and raised the question of a
conspiracy chain. He relayed that when he worked on the pipeline
he w tnessed the secrecy-shrouded delivery of a scale nodel of
the conplete pipeline that included a gas pipeline running

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 35- June 12, 2012



al ongside the oil pipeline. That nodel was destroyed, the actual
pi pe disappeared, and the gas line was never built. It was a
| ost opportunity, he said.

3:31: 56 PM

WARREN CHRI STI AN, President, Doyon Associated LLP, stated that
Doyon is a union pipeline construction conpany and part of Doyon
Limted whose shareholders nostly reside in Alaska. In past
construction projects they attained over 90 percent Al aska hire
and over 30 percent Alaska Native hire and used |ocal Al aska
conpanies to every extent possible. He stated support for the

Poi nt Thonmson project, which will help ensure a healthy econony
via increased flow through the pipeline and an opportunity for
contracts and enploynent. Doyon Associated will directly hire

over 200 enployees over the next two years in support of this
project in addition to the Al aska subcontractors and vendors it
will utilize. This project will also provide an opportunity to
train the next generation of Al askan construction workers wth
the help of the individual union apprentice prograns and the
Fai rbanks training facility.

3:34: 21 PM

JERRY MCCUTCHEON, representing hinself, said the law of oil and
gas production is that naximum recovery can only be had when a
reservoir is produced at or above the bubble point. Because
there is no exception to this law, the only Al aska gas pipelines
will be from Cook Inlet to the Donlin Creek Mne and possibly
one from Cook Inlet to Fairbanks. A gas liquids pipeline wll
run from Prudhoe Bay to Cook Inlet and the lower leg nay be a
gas pipeline from Cook Inlet to Fairbanks.

He said that beginning in 1974 ExxonMbil said that Prudhoe Bay
woul d produce only 9 billion barrels of oil with or without a
gas pipeline, which flew in the face of all known reservoir
action. Even when challenged with engineering facts they would
not back down. That falsehood persists today, even though
Prudhoe Bay has produced nore than 6 billion barrels of
additional oil because no gas |line was constructed, and nore
will be produced. Even the AOGCC in 2008 testified that the
state would be broke today if the gas pipeline of the 1980s had
been constructed.

MR. MCCUTCHEON cautioned that Alaska is nothing nore than a cash
cow to ExxonMobil or any other oil conpany.

3:39:12 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 36- June 12, 2012



BARBARA HUFF- TUCKNESS, Director, Governnental and Legislative
Affairs, Teansters Local 959, thanked the conmttee for
cont i nui ng t he heari ngs; t hey have elicited val uabl e
information. She stated for the record that Teansters Local 959
is not part of the litigation, but is excited about the job
opportunities the nmenbers and enpl oyers statew de.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how many |ocal 959 enployees w il work at
Poi nt Thonson proj ect.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS said she's been told that about 100 nenbers
woul d be enployed. She also extended thanks for the ongoing
funding for the Fairbanks Pipeline Training Center.

3:42:27 PM

RI CK ROGERS, Executive Director, Resource Developnment Counci
(RDC), said RDC is grateful that the Point Thonmson |ease
litigation has been settled because it has been one of the
barriers to nonetizing North Slope gas. The settlenent appears
to be a comercially reasonable agreenent with firm tinelines
and work commitnents as well as significant consequences for
failure to perform It also has flexibility to accommobdate the
unknowns.

He said ExxonMobil and the other |easeholders are anong the
best-capitalized and technically capable conmpanies in the world,
and that is required in a project of this nagnitude. It is now
possible to nove forward. He extended thanks to the
adm ni stration, the | easeholders, and this commttee.

3:47. 45 PM

Bl LL WALKER, representing hinself, said he wanted to clarify the
reason that he appealed Comm ssioner Sullivan's decision to
enter into the Point Thonmson settlenent agreenent. He said he
doesn't have an issue with ExxonMobil or those who negotiate on
behalf of the state. He was challenging the fact that it was
done outside the public process.

He said he was an aggressive proponent of developing Point
Thonmson and he applauded those who were noving forward to do
sone developnent after 47 years. However, the settlenent
meandered beyond the core issue of the Ilitigation, and was
presented as a final deal. He said he believes there is already
too much confidentiality in the state on issues associated with
oil and gas devel opnent. The public and the |egislature need to
know nore about what is happening. Negotiating the settlenent
behi nd cl osed doors was a quantum step in the wong direction.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -37- June 12, 2012



3:53: 50 PM

JOHN MACKI NNON, Executive D rector, Associ at ed CGener a
Contractors of Alaska, said this is a construction trade
association with roughly 650 nenbers. He relayed that he first
met wth ExxonMbil about four years ago to discuss how to
maxi m ze Alaska hire and the use of Al askan contractors on this
project. ExxonMbil commtted to try to maximze the use of
Al askan conpanies and they fulfilled that commtnent. He said he
was pleased that the litigation was settled and would like to
see Point Thonson nove forward to construction this w nter.

3:56: 01 PM

DAVE CHAPUT, Program D rector, Alaska Frontier Constructors
(AFC), and Board Menber, Resource Devel oprment Council, said that
for the last few years he has worked with ExxonMbil on the
Point Thonmson project. He was testifying to highlight the
excel l ent job that ExxonMobil has done with regard to the safety
and health of the Alaskan workforce and protection of the
environnent. The AFC workforce is looking forward to going to
work at Point Thonson helping to bring North Slope resources to
mar ket .

3:57:49 PM

GARY DI XON JR., Vice President, Al aska Teansters Local 959, said
that 150-200 teansters wll be enployed on the Point Thonson
project at the peak. He talked about the wunion apprentice
program and the recruitnment efforts in Alaskan communities.
Apprentices have a trade and can fulfill a good working career
on the North Slope. Point Thonmson wll provide a great
opportunity for the nenbers and he is appreciative.

3:59:22 PM

KATHLEEN O CONNELL, Vice President of Projects, PRL Logistics,
Inc., said that PRL recently received two |large contracts wth
the Point Thonson project to transport materials and people. She
expl ai ned that PRL does not have assets so it will use nore than
25 conpanies to execute the two contracts This is the way that
ExxonMbbi| allows one conpany to nmanage the work that |everages
the powers of other conpanies. PRL is an Al askan-owned conpany
that is currently 100 percent Alaska hire. It is conmtted to
responsi bly devel opi ng Al askan resources.

4:01: 35 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked how many people are directly enployed by PRL

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 38- June 12, 2012



M5. O CONNELL said PRL currently has about 20 enployees and
growh is anticipated during the course of the contracts. She
reiterated that the real power of PRL is its ability to |everage
all the other conpani es.

4:02: 30 PM
CHAIR FRENCH cl osed public testinmony and thanked everyone for
comng to the neeting.

4:03: 13 PM
There being nothing further to cone before the conmttee, Chair
French adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Committee neeting
at 4:03 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 39- June 12, 2012



